9-12-1986

Dedication Ceremony School of Law Addition and Renovation Program, September 12, 1986

Follow this and additional works at: http://www.repository.law.indiana.edu/building
Part of the Legal Education Commons, and the Legal History Commons

Recommended Citation

This Program is brought to you for free and open access by the Law School History and Archives at Digital Repository @ Maurer Law. It has been accepted for inclusion in Law School Building by an authorized administrator of Digital Repository @ Maurer Law. For more information, please contact wattn@indiana.edu.
Dedication Ceremony

SCHOOL OF LAW BUILDING
Addition and Renovation

September 12, 1986
Indiana University Auditorium
Bloomington
School of Law Building
Addition and Renovation

Dedication Ceremony
Dedication Ceremony
School of Law Building
Addition and Renovation
September 12, 1986
3:00 p.m.
Indiana University Auditorium
Bloomington

John W. Ryan, President of Indiana University, Presiding

Prelude
Allegro Maestoso, Symphony No. 3. Louis Vierne

Processional
Fanfare, Walter S. Hartley

Invocation

Welcome and Introductory Remarks

Greetings from the Campus
Kenneb R. R. Gros Louis
Vice President, Bloomington

Greetings from the State
The Honorable
Robert D. Orr
Governor

Presentation of the Building
Robert H. Welz, A.I.A.
Director, The Eggers Group, New York

Acceptance of the Building
Richard B. Stoner
President, Indiana University Board of Trustees

Responses
Bryant G. Garth
Acting Dean, School of Law
S. Jay Flager
Professor, School of Law
James E. Bourne
President, School of Law Alumni Association
David A. Reidy, Jr.
Student, School of Law

Dedication

Dedicatory Music
Build Thee More Stately
Mark Andrews; words: Wendell Holmes

Conferral of Honorary Degrees

Introduction of Dedicatory Speaker

Dedicatory Address
The Legal Profession Today

Concluding Remarks

Recessional
Grand Recessional, Fred

Postlude
Finale, Symphony No. 3, Louis Vierne

Immediately after the program the visitors were asked to join President Ryan in the School of Law for the formal dedication of the building.

Fanfare

Dedication
Fanfare
Dedication of the Indiana University Auditorium

Dedication

President Ryan, assisted by Lynne L. Merritt, Jr., Grand Marshal, and Robert E. Burton, Platform Marshal

Introduction of Dedicatory Speaker

Craig M. Bradley
Professor, School of Law

Dedicatory Address

The Honorable William H. Rehnquist
Associate Justice, Supreme Court of the United States

Concluding Remarks

President Ryan

Recessional

Grand Recessional, Fred Bock

Postlude

Symphony No. 3, Louis Vierne

Immediately after the program at the Auditorium, the audience is asked to join President Ryan and the Platform Party at the School of Law for the formal dedication, followed by a reception and tours of the building.

Fanfare

Indiana University
Fanfare Trumpeters
Directed by Charles J. Gorham, Professor of Music

Dedication

President Ryan

Fanfare
Honorary Degree Candidates

Shirley Schlanger Abrahamson

DOCTOR OF LAWS

The Honorable Shirley S. Abrahamson combines a legal mind of exceptional acuity with a compassionate concern for the individual. Her perception of what other people regard as their best interest and her fairness in balancing this with judicial issues have been the hallmark of her outstanding career on the Wisconsin Supreme Court and as a faculty member of the University of Wisconsin Law School.

A native of New York City, Justice Abrahamson received the A.B. from New York University in 1953. She entered the Indiana University School of Law at Bloomington and was awarded the J.D. in 1956. She was admitted to the bar in Indiana in 1956, in New York in 1961, and in Wisconsin in 1962. In 1962 she received the S.J.D. from the University of Wisconsin and from that year until 1976 practiced law with the Wisconsin firm of Lafollette, Sinykin, Anderson & Abrahamson. Since 1966 she has been a member of the law faculty of the University of Wisconsin.

In 1976 Justice Abrahamson's exceptional abilities were recognized by appointment to the Supreme Court of the State of Wisconsin. The first woman to serve on that court, she won election in 1979 to a ten-year term.

As a legal scholar, she has brought new understanding of constitutional law, especially First Amendment questions of free speech and freedom of the press and controversial issues in affirmative action and human rights. On the court, Justice Abrahamson has established a reputation for thoughtful and fair-minded judgment. Her written opinions, whether majority or minority, make it clear that on the bench as in public life she sets for herself the same unusually high standards in explaining her judicial philosophy. The breadth of her expertise is reflected in her astuteness in matters ranging from the evaluation of labor agreements and the political ramifications of a course of action to the interplay of law enforcement practices and individual rights.

Justice Abrahamson serves on numerous professional organizations, including the Council of the American Law Institute, the Board for Women Judges, the American Judicature Society Committee, the Special for Citizenship, the American, Wisconsin, and Admissions to the Wisconsin Civil Liberties Union, American, Wisonsin, and Associations.

In addition to carrying her duties as a member of the court, Justice Abrahamson takes the University of Wisconsin to speak to groups, promoting a profession of thoughtfulness and commitment to the judicial system, and many students in elementary and secondary schools.

For many years, Justice Abrahamson has accepted numerous speaking engagements and abroad as promoting thoughtful consideration of individual rights and standards of professional education.

Shirley Schlanger Abrahamson received her education at the University of Wisconsin, and her disaste in the system of the State of Wisconsin.
Candidates

Abrahamson

AWS

Abrahamson combines a legal and compassionate concern for what other people see as fairness in balancing the hallmark of her tenure on the Wisconsin Supreme Court and the University of Wisconsin Law School.

Abrahamson received her law degree in 1953. She entered law at Bloomington and was admitted to the bar in 1961, and in that year until 1976 she was a partner in the firm of Lafollette, Sycamore. Since 1966 she has served on the University of Wisconsin Board of Regents.

Exceptional abilities were recognized in 1976 when she was appointed to serve on that court for a ten-year term.

From her new understanding of the First Amendment, speech and action, and human rights, Abrahamson has established standards of thought and judgment. In public life she sets standards in the interplay of law and social order.

The breadth of her knowledge in matters ranging from law and government to the political and personal judgments of human rights.

Her numerous professional memberships include the American Bar Association, the American Law Institute, the Board of Directors of the Foundation for Women Judges, the Executive Committee of the American Judicature Society, the Special Committee on Youth Education for Citizenship, the Action Commission to Improve the Tort Liability System, and the Section on Legal Education and Admissions to the Bar of the American Bar Association. Among other positions, she has served on the Wisconsin Board of Bar Commissioners, the Advisory Board of the National Institute of Justice, the Governor of Wisconsin's Study Committee on Judicial Organization, and the Board of Directors of the Wisconsin Civil Liberties Union.

In addition to carrying a heavy load on the Court, Justice Abrahamson takes the time to travel throughout the state of Wisconsin to speak to community and professional groups, promoting a fuller understanding of the state judicial system, and makes a special effort to talk to students in elementary and secondary schools. She also accepts numerous speaking engagements across the nation and abroad as part of her commitment to ensuring thoughtful consideration of the balance between individual rights and social order.

For many years, Justice Abrahamson has given counsel to Indiana University through her service on the law school Board of Visitors, where her wise and constructive judgment provides invaluable guidance.

Shirley Schlanger Abrahamson's contributions to legal education at the University of Wisconsin and Indiana University, and her distinguished service in the judiciary system of the State of Wisconsin exemplify the highest standards of professional excellence, enhanced by the humane perception that is her special quality.
Frederick Reed Dickerson
DOCTOR OF LAWS

Frederick Reed Dickerson's achievements as a legal scholar have earned him international preeminence in legislative interpretation and legal drafting. He has put his scholarly expertise to practical application in service to the federal government and his extensive publications have had significant impact on legal education and practice in this country.

Professor Dickerson earned the A.B. from Williams College in 1931 and the LL.B. from Harvard Law School in 1934. He studied also at Columbia University, earning the LL.M. in 1939 and the J.S.D. in 1950. From 1934 to 1938 he practiced law in Boston and Chicago. In 1939 he joined the faculty of Washington University and in 1940 became assistant professor of law at the University of Pittsburgh. During the war years, Professor Dickerson served as attorney for the Office of Price Administration and subsequently as Assistant Legislative Counsel for the Office of Legislative Counsel of the U.S. House of Representatives. From 1949 to 1958 he was attorney for the Department of Defense. In 1958 Dr. Dickerson joined the faculty of the Indiana University School of Law and has been a distinguished member of the faculty since that time, retiring to emeritus status in 1982.

Professor Dickerson is nationally recognized by lawyers, judges, and law educators as the foremost authority in the field of statutory interpretation. His classic textbook, *The Interpretation and Application of Statutes* (1975), considered the most penetrating and comprehensive analysis of the subject, provides a cogent approach that has significantly enhanced legal education and practice.

Professor Dickerson also has made a unique contribution in the field of legal drafting. His work on clarifying and simplifying the language used in statutes and regulations issued by governmental agencies has earned him widespread recognition in the United States and other English-speaking countries. Among his landmark books are *Legislative Drafting* (1954), revised in 1965 as *The Fundamentals of Legal Drafting*, and the teaching text *Materials on Legal Drafting*. These publications, which embody a combination of intellectual insight and common sense that is characteristic of his writing, have brought about an increase in the quality of legal writing in law schools that educate at least as important as educators and litigators. They contribute importance to lawyers and interpreting statutes.

Professor Dickerson has served extensively in government. As attorney for the Department of the Interior, he was editor for a task force that prepared regulations for the armed forces, a project sponsored by a joint committee of the U.S. Senate and House. His work on legislative drafting for the Conference of Commissioners on Uniform Criminal Laws resulted in several proposed uniform laws adopted by a majority of states. His work on the Conference of Commissioners on Legislative Drafting has been called upon as an expert witness in Indonesia.

In the teaching of legal drafting, Professor Dickerson has made a unique contribution. With innovative ideas and practical experience, he developed courses at Indiana University that represent a breakthrough that enabled lawyers to teach large numbers of their peers how to improve the language used in statutes and regulations. Dickerson has provided many lawyers with a tool that is largely of his own invention, which has been of great benefit to the profession for many years.
brought about an increasing recognition on the part of law schools that educating the lawyer as draftsman is at least as important as educating the lawyer as advocate and litigator. They contain also information and advice of importance to lawyers involved in drafting, amending, and interpreting statutes and legal instruments.

Professor Dickerson has applied his scholarly expertise extensively in government service and as a consultant. As attorney for the Department of Defense, he was chief editor for a task force that codified laws relating to the armed forces, a project that became a model for all titles of the U.S. code. His work as a member of the National Conference of Commissioners on Uniform State Laws has resulted in several proposals that have been enacted by a majority of states. His widespread reputation led to an invitation by the House of Lords to give evidence on ways of improving the British statutory draft, and he also has been called upon as a consultant in Canada and Indonesia.

In the teaching of legal drafting, Professor Dickerson's innovative ideas and publications and his pioneering courses at Indiana University have brought about a major breakthrough that enables law professors effectively to teach large numbers of students a subject that previously could be taught only in small groups.

Through the lawyers he has trained, the influence of his published works, and the many federal and state laws that are largely of his composition, Frederick Reed Dickerson has provided guidance that will influence the profession for many years to come.
Jesse E. Eschbach
DOCTOR OF LAWS

The Honorable Jesse E. Eschbach is widely respected as a master of the art of judging. His adjudication unfailingly balances fairness to the parties and their circumstances with the maintenance of the legal precepts that over time preserve justice for all. The humanity, objectivity, and clarity of his judgments reflect thoughtful examination and broad perception of issues.

Judge Eschbach was born at Warsaw, Indiana. He received the B.S. from Indiana University in 1943 and the J.D. with distinction in 1949. He was admitted to the Indiana Bar in 1949 and from that year until 1962 was a partner in the Warsaw firm of Graham, Rasor, Eschbach & Harris. During those years he served also as city attorney for Warsaw, deputy prosecuting attorney for the 54th Judicial Circuit Court of Indiana, and secretary and general counsel for Dalton Foundries, Inc.

Jesse Eschbach's reputation for wisdom and high integrity led in 1962 to the honor of an appointment by President Kennedy as judge of the United States District Court for Indiana, Northern District. Judge Eschbach served in this position until 1974, when he was appointed chief judge for the Northern District. In 1981 he again received a presidential appointment, by President Reagan, as judge for the United States Court of Appeals, Seventh Circuit. He has served there with great distinction and several of his opinions have become landmarks.

Judge Eschbach's commitment to serving his community, state, and profession has been expressed through his activities, he was president of the Warsaw Chamber of Commerce and the Rotary Club of Warsaw during the 1950s, and was named Man of the Year by the Chamber of Commerce in 1961. From 1960 to 1962, he served on the Labor Relations Committee of the U.S. Chamber of Commerce.

He is a member of the American and Indiana Bar Associations, the American Judicature Society, the Seventh Circuit Federal Bar Association, and the Indiana Manufacturers Association. He has served on the Board of Managers and the Foundation of the Indiana Manufacturers Association.

As an alumnus of Indiana University Law, Judge Eschbach has often given of his time and foresight to the University, and has served on the School of Law school benefits in a manner that reflects the ethical standards of government.
widely respected as a jurist and respected as a judge, unfailingly accepting that over time, objectivity, and thoughtful examination are the cornerstones of justice. Judge Eschbach was graduated from Indiana University in 1943 and the School of Law in 1946. He was admitted to the Indiana Bar in 1948. From 1943 until 1962 was a partner in the law firm of Rasor, Eschbach & Karr. He served also as city attorney for the city of Warsaw, as Indiana Bar Association counsel, and secretary and treasurer of the Indiana Manufacturers Association, Inc.

As a trial judge, Judge Eschbach was appointed by the United States District Court for the Northern District of Indiana in 1961. He was United States District Judge for the Northern District of Indiana from 1961 to 1981. He served on the Board of Trustees of Indiana University from 1965 to 1970. In 1970, he was appointed by the United States Court of Appeals to serve there with great distinction. He has become a permanent fixture in his community, serving through his long association with the Warsaw Chamber of Commerce during the years that he was its president. Since 1962, he served on the Board of Managers and the House of Delegates of the Indiana Bar Association and as director of the Indiana Manufacturers Association.

As an alumnus of Indiana University and the School of Law, Judge Eschbach has devoted his time and thought to the well-being of the University. A member of the Board of Trustees from 1965 to 1970, he brought wisdom and foresight to the University's concerns. Since 1970 he has served on the School of Law Board of Visitors. The law school benefits in numerous ways from his guidance and generous readiness to respond to the school's needs.

Judge Eschbach's distinguished reputation as a jurist is evidenced by his influence on young lawyers who have the privilege of clerking for him, and in the universal respect of his colleagues and of lawyers who practice before him. He is known for his talent for the most difficult aspect of judging: reaching a just result in light of both the individual case and the commands of general legal rules. He is a firm adherent of careful reading of statutes and controlling precedent, and his detailed explanation of his decision in each case ensures the process of deliberation.

During Jesse Eschbach's many years on the trial bench, his court was described as "as fine a human institution of justice as one could imagine." His career as a trial judge and as a judge for the Court of Appeals reflects the ethical strengths of our system of government.
The Addition and Renovation

The addition to the School of Law Building comprises 60,000 gross square feet. The Law Library is housed in the addition, which increases the library space by approximately 33,000 square feet, more than doubling its capacity in terms of holdings. The library includes small-group study rooms and ample reading areas with excellent access for the handicapped. An atrium overlooking the woodland area of the campus rises four and a half floors at the north side of the library. It is faced across the north wall with paned windows, extending from floor to ceiling, which harmonize with the fenestration of the 1956 building. The limestone exterior of the addition also reflects the original building in texture and architectural detail.

The interior of the older portion of the building has been extensively restructured to provide smaller, tiered classrooms that accord with contemporary directions in legal education, an expanded student lounge, and office space for student organizations. A new trial room and a renovated moot court room, as well as computer, videotaping, and simulation technology, further enhance the school's facilities in offering an outstanding education in the law.

Design Architect
The Eggers Group
New York, New York

Project Architect
Odle-Burke Architects
Bloomington, Indiana

General Contractor
Bledsoe and Associates
Indianapolis, Indiana

Mechanical Contractor
Roland M. Cotton Company, Inc.
Indianapolis, Indiana

Electrical Contractor
Ermco, Incorporated
Indianapolis, Indiana

The Indiana University, founded in 1842, is west of the Allegheny country. The law school is on the Bloomington campus, founded in 1956. The 1956 building era in legal education was for 220 students, the library and faculty generally taught in law schools.

The library expansion in 1986 suit a new goal of providing the law school with practical purposes needed usable space, the building accommodates a study and a library with focus. Classrooms are designed for seminars, with special and appellate court study rooms representing an outstanding and an optimal working faculty. The law school's position at the south campus, closely linked.

The School of Law faculty includes student body primarily from throughout the from a young but distinguished members. Faculty engaged in traditional legal study and legal reasoning and emerging area study and practice law. The faculty has professors with clinical experience, as in a law degree with a doctorate in English, history, philosophy, and to teaching and research.
The Indiana University School of Law of Law
Bloomington

The Indiana University School of Law-Bloomington, founded in 1842, is the oldest state university law school west of the Alleghenies and one of the oldest in the country. The law school has had several locations on the Bloomington campus, and moved to its present site in 1956. The 1956 building was designed for a very different era in legal education. The student body comprised only 230 students, the library was relatively small, and the faculty generally taught large classes typical of those taught in law schools around the country.

The library expansion and building renovation completed in 1986 suit a new generation in legal education, providing the law school with a facility that is for all practical purposes new. With forty percent of additional usable space, the building now comfortably accommodates a student body that numbers close to 600 and a library with four times the volumes held in 1956. Classrooms are designed for both large classes and small seminars, with special rooms for videotaping and trial and appellate court simulation. The new facility thus represents an outstanding combination of elegant design and an optimal working environment for students and faculty. The law school has been fortunate to retain its position at the southwest corner of the Bloomington campus, closely linked to the rest of the University.

The School of Law features a diverse, carefully selected student body primarily from Indiana but also recruited from throughout the country. They receive instruction from a young but distinguished faculty of thirty members. Faculty engage in teaching and research in the traditional legal studies essential for students to master legal reasoning and chart the development of the law, and in emerging areas of concentration necessary to study and practice law effectively in today’s world. The faculty has professors whose teaching is enriched by clinical experience, as well as those who combine their law degree with a doctorate in fields such as economics, English, history, philosophy, and sociology. In addition to teaching and research, faculty are involved in a variety
of service activities, including lecturing on topics of interest to the public and the bar, conducting labor arbitrations, making physicians aware of legal developments in their field, screening possible violations of civil liberties, and providing legal services to indigent defendants.

Students thus are exposed to several approaches and perspectives that train them to see both the large issues of public policy and the details of effective advocacy. Graduates are well prepared to practice law in business, government, or law firms in any of the fifty states and the District of Columbia. School of Law graduates hold important judgeships and prominent positions in state and federal government, head Fortune 500 corporations, and practice law in settings ranging from the largest corporate practices to smaller private and public firms.

The renovated facility provides the School of Law with the opportunity to give today's generation of students an even better education. The faculty is committed to moving the law school to the forefront of legal education, and the new facility should allow it to make great strides in that direction.

Faculty
School of Law

Jody David Armour, Lecturer, A.B., 1982, Harvard University; J.D., 1986, University of California, Berkeley


Patrick L. Baude, Professor, A.B., 1964, J.D., 1966, University of Kansas; LL.M., 1968, Harvard University

Terry A. Bethel, Professor, B.A., 1968, J.D., 1971, Ohio State University

Douglas G. Boshkoff, Professor, A.B., 1952, LL.B., 1955, Harvard University

Craig M. Bradley, Professor, A.B., 1967, University of North Carolina; J.D., 1970, University of Virginia

Daniel O. Conkle, Associate Professor, B.A., 1976, J.D., 1979, The Ohio State University


F. Reed Dickerson, Professor Emeritus, A.B., 1931, Williams College; LL.B., 1934, Harvard University; LL.M., 1939, J.S.D., 1950, Columbia University

Roger B. Dworkin, Professor, A.B., 1963, Princeton University; J.D., 1966, Stanford University
Faculty and Staff of the School of Law-Bloomington

FACULTY

Jody David Armour, Lecturer.
A.B., 1982, Harvard University; J.D., 1986, University of California, Berkeley


Patrick L. Bauer, Professor.
A.B., 1964, J.D., 1966, University of Kansas; LL.M., 1966, Harvard University

Terry A. Bethel, Professor. B.A., 1966, J.D., 1971, The Ohio State University

Douglass G. Boskoff, Professor. A.B., 1952, LL.B., 1955, Harvard University

Craig M. Bradley, Professor.
A.B., 1967, University of North Carolina; J.D., 1978, University of Virginia

Daniel O. Conkle, Associate Professor. B.A., 1976, J.D., 1979, The Ohio State University


F. Reed Dickerson, Professor Emeritus. A.B., 1931, Williams College; LL.B., 1934, Harvard University; LL.M., 1939, J.S.D., 1960, Columbia University

Roger B. Dweckin, Professor.
A.B., 1963, Princeton University; J.D., 1966, Stanford University

Thomas S. Emerson, Visiting Professor. A.B., 1950, DePaul University; J.D., 1955, Indiana University

Merritt B. Fox, Professor. B.A., 1966, J.D., 1971, Ph.D., 1980, Yale University


Harvard University

Bryant G. Garth, Acting Dean and Professor. B.A., 1972, Yale University; J.D., 1975, Stanford University; Ph.D., 1979, European University Institute (Florence)

Ann J. Gellis, Associate Professor. B.A., 1966, Case Western Reserve University; J.D., 1971, New York University


Jerome Hall, Distinguished Professor Emeritus. Ph.B., 1922, J.D., 1923, University of Chicago; S.J.D., 1935, Columbia University

Robert H. Heidt, Associate Professor. B.A., 1972, J.D., 1972, University of Wisconsin

F. Thomas Schornhorst, Professor. B.A., 1956, University of Iowa; J.D., 1963, George Washington University


Jeffrey E. Stake, Assistant Professor. B.A., 1975, University of Illinois; J.D., 1981, Georgetown University

J. Alexander Tanford, Associate Professor. A.B., 1972, Princeton University; J.D., 1976, LL.M., 1979, Duke University


Mary Kay Moody, Placement Director. B.A., 1945, M.S., 1979, Indiana University

Carole S. Rudnick, Assistant Professor. A.B., 1974, Creighton University; J.D., 1978, University of Chicago


Janis L. Johnston, Assistant Librarian. A.B., 1972, Purdue University; M.L.S., 1976, University of Illinois


In Appreciation

Appreciation is expressed to Larry H. Smith and David E. Little for providing music for this occasion, and to the Indiana University Fanfare Trumpeters, under the direction of Charles J. Gorham, for the fanfare at the School of Law.

Appreciation is expressed also to those persons who served as ushers.

School of Law Dedication Committee

Patrick L. Baude
J. Terry Clapacs
Wayne O. Craig
Bryant G. Garth, chairperson
Carol P. Gilman, ex officio
Maurice J. Holland, Jr., former chairperson
Arthur M. Lotz
Val Nolan Jr.
Daniel G. Pappas
Colleen Kristi Pauwels
S. Jay Plager
Michael F. Powers
Kirk R. White, ex officio